## UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

# NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FO	RN	PS	USE (	YINC					
IRE	CE	VE	)	A	ph. 104				
				D	26	P 197	3		
			TERE						
ID.	٩IE	ĿΝ	IEREI	)			MAD	1.6	il trans

SEEIN	ISTRUCTIONS IN <i>HOW T</i> O TYPE ALL ENTRIES O			
NAME	THE ALL ENTITIES C	JOHN ELTE ATTEIOAB	LE GEOTIONO	
HISTORIC	promise of the same of the sam			
	Peter Johansen Hous	e		
AND/OR COMMON	Johansen House			
LOCATION		the Carrier of	1 117 29	
STREET & NUMBER	[ A A ] ( A A )			
			NOT FOR PUBLICATION	
CITY, TOWN			CONGRESSIONAL DISTR	ІСТ
STATE	Castle Dale X	VICINITY OF CODE	01	CODE
SIAIL	Utah.	049	Emery	015
CLASSIFICA	ATION			
CATEGORY	OWNERSHIP	STATUS	PRES	ENT USE
DISTRICT	PUBLIC	XOCCUPIED	X AGRICULTURE	MUSEUM
X_BUILDING(S)	XPRIVATE	UNOCCUPIED	COMMERCIAL	PARK
STRUCTURE SITE	BOTH PUBLIC ACQUISITION	WORK IN PROGRESS	EDUCATIONAL	X_PRIVATE RESIDENC
OBJECT	_IN PROCESS	ACCESSIBLEYES: RESTRICTED	ENTERTAINMENT GOVERNMENT	RELIGIOUSSCIENTIFIC
	BEING CONSIDERED	YES: UNRESTRICTED	INDUSTRIAL	TRANSPORTATION
		_X_NO	MILITARY	OTHER:
OWNER OF	PROPERTY			
NAME				
	Della Johansen			
STREET & NUMBER				
CITY, TOWN	the second secon	A AND THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY OF THE PART	STATE	
	Castle Dale	VICINITY OF	Utah 84	513
LOCATION	OF LEGAL DESCR	IPTION		
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ET	rc. Emery County Recor	der's Office		
STREET & NUMBER				
	Emery County Courth	ouse	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
CITY, TOWN	Castle Dale		state Utah	
REPRESENT	TATION IN EXIST	ING SURVEYS		
ŤĨTLE				
	None			
DATE	-	FEDERAL	STATECOUNTYLOCAL	
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS			STATECOUNTYLOCAL	
CITY, TOWN			STATE	

#### CONDITION

**CHECK ONE** 

**CHECK ONE** 

\_EXCELLENT

\_\_DETERIORATED
\_\_RUINS

\_\_ALTERED

ORIGINAL SITE

MOVED DATE

\_\_FAIR

\_\_UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Peter Johansen House is a large one-and-a-half story Victorian farm house built of brick on a poured concrete foundation. It incorporates components ordered from catalogs and design elements inspired by architectural patternbooks of the period in a design created by Zora Johansen, the owner's wife, who used a cardboard model to plan the house. Around the house are old cottonwood trees and to the rear there are two log outbuildings.

The house is composed of a main hip-roofed block with four projecting gable-roofed bays, one on each side. There are two brick chimneys with corbelled caps, one at the peak of the main roof, the other at the ridgeline of the rear gabled bay. A cornice with modillion brackets runs under the eaves and forms large returns at the gable ends of the bays. The (west) front and rear bays extend farther out from the main block of the house than do the shallow side bays.

Walls of the house are built of brick shipped from Provo, Utah, over 100 miles north. Window openings have stone sills and lintels. The windows and door units are said to have been obtained from "back east," probably ordered by catalog from an eastern U.S. mill work firm, a common practice in the period. Most of the windows are double-hung one-over-one pane, though the first story windows in the front and south side bays are large fixed units with stained glass transoms. On the north side on the house, near the front, is a small rectangular stained glass window that lights the interior entry hall.

At the northwest corner of the house, next to the front bay, is the two-story front porch. Its first level has three doric columns supporting a wooden cornice with modillion brackets. Two transomed doors, one in the main block of the house, the other in the north side of the bay, open onto the first story. The upper level of the porch is smaller. It is entered from a second story doorway that slices through the cornice and lower part of the roof of the house. The doorway is sheltered by a steep-gabled pedimented roof that projects from the main hip roof, supported by two wooden doric columns. There are wooden balustrades on both levels of the front porch. There is also a one-story southeast side porch with doric columns, now enclosed.

To the northeast of the house are two one-story gable-roofed log outbuildings. The closer of the pair is an old granary originally built in Castledale a mile away and hauled to this site to provide housing for workmen during construction of the main house. It is built of squared logs with half-dovetail notching. The front (west) facade has a symetrical window-door-window arrangement. On the south side is a rough open stair leading to an upper entrance in the novelty-sided gable end. The roof is wood shingled.

The other log structure was built in 1936 or 1937 by Byron Johansen, son of the original owner, when he took over the house. It is constructed of logs hewn flat on the top and bottom to fit tightly together, but left rounded on the exposed sides. They are assembled by means of square notching. There is a door opening in the front (east) facade and a window in the south facade. Gable ends have vertical plank siding above the top of the log walls, and the roof is covered with wood shingles.

#### PERIOD

#### AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

PREHISTORIC	ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC	COMMUNITY PLANNING	LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE	RELIGION
1400-1499	ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC	CONSERVATION	LAW	SCIENCE
1500-1599	XAGRICULTURE	ECONOMICS	LITERATURE	SCULPTURE
1600-1699	ARCHITECTURE	EDUCATION	MILITARY	SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
1700-1799	ART	ENGINEERING	MUSIC	THEATER
1800-1899	COMMERCE	$rac{\mathbf{X}}{\mathbf{E}}$ EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT	PHILOSOPHY	TRANSPORTATION
X_1900-	COMMUNICATIONS	INDUSTRY	POLITICS/GOVERNMENT	OTHER (SPECIFY)
		INVENTION		

SPECIFIC DATES

1912

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

#### STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Johansen home is one of the finest old houses in Castle Dale and remains in the family of the original owner. It was one of the most modern in town at the time of construction and had all the latest conveniences including gas, light, and a dumbwaiter between the pantry off the kitchen and the cellar under the house so food could be rapidly brought up for cooking or serving. The house was carefully planned by the owner's wife, who made a cardboard model of the house showing each room in detail that was used as a sort of blueprint for building.

Several people helped to build the house. The head carpenter was Charlie Jacobsen of Mt. Pleasant, a cousin of Peter Johansen, the original owner. Charlie hired another carpenter, Charlie Jensen of Orangeville, to help on the job. Lars Christensen and Mill Peterson were the brick masons, using brick that had been specially shipped from Provo for this house. Their work required great precision for once they put up a wall using the wrong thickness of mortar, making the wall the wrong height. They had to tear the whole thing down and start over. Because of their effort to do the job right, however, the house has endured for generations without sagging, cracking or bulging.

Only the very finest materials were used to build this house. Peter Johansen ordered all the wood through his sister, Mina Miller of Huntington, and she obtrained flooring, window casings, door casing etc. from back east. A man named Clair finished the woodwork by staining, varnishing and polishing it in place. The stained glass windows also came from back east, and may even have come originally from Italy. On the ground floor are two beautiful fireplaces, one in the dining room and one set into a corner of the front room. These have heavy cast iron fireplace surrounds with decorative designs on the covers. The covers can only be inserted after the grate is disassembled, so they fit tight to keep out drafts. The cover in the dining room shows a cowboy on his horse; the living room cover has a shield and bough design. The surrounds are in turn surrounded by glazed ceramic tile, also shipped from the east.

The original owner, Peter Johansen II, was a cattle rancher known throughout Castle Valley as "Pete Jo." He was born on May 14, 1861, at Mt. Pleasant, Sanpete County, Utah. His parents were Danish converts to the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints who had come to Utah in the mid-19th Century. Pete Jo grew up in Mt. Pleasant and got into the cattle business by tending the town herd. All the townsfolk put their stock into that herd and it was run over in Emery County during the summers. In the fall Pete Jo returned the cattle to Mt. Pleasant and each animal was claimed by its

owner.

### 9 MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

See attached sheet.

10 GEOGRAPHICAL D ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPER		Contraction of Contra	An analysis of the state of the	
QUADRANGLE NAME Castle	Dale 1:62500		QUADRANGLE SC	ALE
UTM REFERENCES A 112 4 9 8 4 0 0 0 ZONE EASTING C	413 411 71010 NORTHING	B ZONE	EASTING N	IORTHING
EL L		F	السلسا	
G VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRI	PTION D	нЦ		<u></u>
18S, Range 8E, SLM, east beginning.	DOSTILITIES :	sw corner of 55.5 ft.; wes	nw 1/4 sw 1/4 o st 654 ft.; sout	f Section 27, Township h 445.5 ft. to
LIST ALL STATES AND	COUNTIES FOR PROPER	TIES OVERLAPPI	NG STATE OR COUNT	Y BOUNDARIES
STATE	CODE	COUNTY		CODE
STATE	CODE	COUNTY		CODE
11 FORM PREPARED NAME/TITLE Nancy J. Taniguchi, Prese		nomas W. Hanc	hett, Architect	ural Historian
ORGANIZATION Utah State Historical Soc	iety		March	1979
STREET & NUMBER 307 West 200 South, Suite	1000		TELEPHON	
CITY OR TOWN Salt Lake City	1000		(801) STATE Utah	533-6017
12 STATE HISTORIC	PRESERVATIO	N OFFICE	R CERTIFICA	TION
THE EVALU	JATED SIGNIFICANCE O	F THIS PROPERTY	WITHIN THE STATE I	S:
NATIONAL	STA	TE	LOCAL	<del>X</del>
As the designated State Historic Pr hereby nominate this property for criteria and procedures set forth by	inclusion in the National	Register and certi		
STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFF		low V	Smile	
TITLE Melvin T. Smith Preservation Of FOR NPS USE ONLY		coric	DATE A	August 29, 1979
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS	PROPERTY IS INCLUDED	OIN THE NATION		
W. Kay Tuck	REGISTER		DATE	3-19-80 3.13.80
CHIEF OF REGISTRATION	ralham		DATE	5.13.80

Form No. 10-300a (Hev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

EOD N	IPS USE	ABIV			5 (45 A F X 15)	0517
Iron n	ir a vae	UNLT		3.0	Star Fee	.^. ¥
				34 3		0
RECEI	AFD P	SEP	979			See.
	ACC .					jeren. Bolovij
DATE	ENTERE	D	1	1/AR 1	9 1980	á,

**CONTINUATION SHEET** 

ITEM NUMBER

PAGE 2

Pete Jo spent so much time in Emery County that he decided to settle there. In 1898 he took out a patent of 160 acres of land he was homesteading in Huntington Canyon. He farmed this land and raised livestock there. Although he had started with the Mt. Pleasant herd, he eventually acquired his own by first buying a heifer with his herding wages, then buying another and another until with purchase and natural increase he was able to establish his own herd. He then moved permanently to Emery County. He married Zora Elizabeth Cook of Huntington and they settled on the homestead during the summer, moving to Huntington town during the winter.

Huntington Canyon had always been one of the main trails for people coming over from Sanpete County. During the time that Pete Jo moved to Emery County, many other young Sanpete men were doing the same. The pressure of population on the land forced the move, and the final settlement call of Brigham Young in 1877 and 1878 encouraged many to come to Emery County. Like Pete Jo, several men were herders and had traveled the Huntington route, going up Pleasant Creek Canyon to the left fork of Huntington Canyon and then down into Castle Traffic between Emery and Sanpete County was frequent and actively benefitted Emery County settlement. Parts for the first Emery County grist mill were dragged by oxen through two feet of snow from Fountain Green, Sanpete County, in 1879. During the same winter several men from Emery County tramped to Manti through Salina Canyon to get Christmas gifts for the children of Castle Dale. (In those rough years the children could count on treats only once a year and no one wanted to disappoint them.) The year 1880 marked the first major settlement in Emery County, and the railroad completion through Price (then northern Emery County) in 1883 encouraged further settlement. In 1890, when Pete Jo became a permanent resident, the Emery population had grown to 5,076.

Conditions in Huntington did not prove ideal, and Pete Jo began looking elsewhere for a home. He planned to move to Oregon but the house deal fell through, so instead the family came to Castle Dale (about ten miles south of Huntington) in December, 1903. They moved into a newly constructed house on the Castle Dale townsite which the family still owns. Pete Jo bought bench land from Richard C. Miller in 1909. Around 1911 they began construction on the present home which was completed and occupied by Pete Jo and his family in 1912. He was the first settler to build up on the bench away from town. While the men worked on constructing the new house, Pete's wife, Zora, cooked all the meals at their house in town and brought it to the new homesite in buckets, walking the mile up the hill. Zora contributed a great deal to the house in her design for it, the cardboard model, and in her attention to the workmen's welfare. Unfortunately she didn't live very long to enjoy it, dying in July 1914 in the new house. Pete Jo later married Sophia Monsen Poulsen of Mt. Pleasant.

Form No. 10-300a (Rev. 10-74)

## UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

# NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS USE ONLY  RECEIVED 6 SEP 1979  DATE ENTERED MAR 1 9 1980
--

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER

8 PAGE

3

The Peter Johansen house was built on cattle. Pete Jo had brought his substantial herd to Castle Dale in 1903 and soon found both summer and winter pasture for them. He first bought summer grazing land up in Joe's Valley, about 24 miles away. That land is now inundated by the Joe's Valley Reservoir, but they also bought other land higher up where the family still Before the dam was built, Pete Jo raised hay and alfalfa in the flat mountain valley, his original grazing purchase. Slightly later he leased land from the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) down on Sinbad in the San Rafael Desert, 32 miles from Castle Dale. He ran his herds there during the winter. a practice followed by his son, Byron, and grandson Kirk, who still puts the cattle on the Sinbad range. In the fall they had to drive the cattle up to the railroad in Price to sell the beef which would be shipped over to the larger market in Denver. Pete Jo's three sons, Eugene, Merrial and Byron, all had cattle in the family herd and they always sold together with their father who then doled out the money. Around 1929 Pete Jo also started raising sheep, an activity taken over by the second son, Merrial. The cattle was sometimes kept at the 40 acres behind the Johansen home in Castle Dale. Especially in the winter, which can hit hard on Sinbad, the weak cows and those about to calve were brought to the Castle Dale spread where they could be more easily tended. Generally the men would stay in Castle Dale throughout the year, riding out to check on the herds as often as the weather demanded.

Pete Jo used horses extensively in his work, and was the first to introduce the Hamiltonian, an excellent breed of riding horse, to the Castle Dale area. He also had teams of Percherons and Clysdales to plow the land behind the house where he planted his crops.

Through hard labor and family cooperation, several kinds of crops were grown on the 40 acres in Castle Dale. Hay was the main crop, but the family also raised grains, vegetables and had an orchard which still produces succulent apples for all the relations. When Pete Jo bought the property there was a huge wash through the middle of the field behind the house. Pete Jo and his boys dug out all the surface rocks on the rest of the farm and dumped them into the wash. They filled it in and built a fence at the bottom. As years went by the mud settled out of the water carried down the wash and began to fill up the low land at the bottom, submerging the fence. This process was repeated for several seasons, and now there are four or five fences on top of each other at the bottom of the wash.

In spite of his involvement with the farm and the herd, Pete Jo had time for other work in the community. He was a charitable person who took the time to bring flour and beef to the widows and orphans of Castle Dale. He was also a good businessman, holding stock in the Castle Dale Co-op and serving on the board of directors of the Emery County Bank. When he died on August 10, 1936, the community lost both a leader and a friend.

Form No. 10-300a (Hev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

# NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS U	CE CHILY		
HOU MESO	DE CHILI	State of the State of the	27 SEAS 10 37
		THE STATE OF THE STATE OF	
695		96	
Incorpored.	e efp 19	1/31	
RECEIVED	0 3 -1		
	Service Control of the Control of th		400
		LAATO LA	
The second second			7 (7)
DATE ENTE	BED		
INVIECTATE	neu	<u> </u>	

**CONTINUATION SHEET** 

ITEM NUMBER

PAGE

8

4

The Johansen property went to his children and the youngest son, Byron, moved into the house with his family. Byron built the smaller log cabin that still stands behind the house and constructed another one on the Sinbad range, where he also made ponds for the cattle. The second log building behind the Johansen home has been there since the house was constructed. It was originally used as a granary at the Johansen house on the Castle Dale townsite. Harnesses and other equipment were kept in the second story, and on the ground floor were several grain bins where different kinds of grain were stored. During the construction of the new home the old granary was moved to its present site by wagon. The wagon box was removed and the building put on the wheels with the reach connecting them. The team was hooked up, it was dragged intact to its current location and set on a foundation of flat stones laid out behind the house. The workmen then had a sturdy building for a home.

Most of the house has changed very little since construction. Electricity and running water were put in soon after they came to Castle Dale and the old gas generator in the basement was removed. At that time a bathroom was added. The upstairs has been slightly remodeled to include another bathroom and small kitchen, but the main structure of the house and the outside appearance remain unchanged. Byron's widow, Della Peterson Johansen, now lives alone in the house while her son Kirk manages the farm and the herd. This house and farm will remain in the family for the foreseeable future and will continue as a tangible reminder of generations of hard-won prosperity in rural Utah.

### UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

## NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

RECEIVED 6 SEP 1979  DATE ENTERED MAR 1 9 1000
--

**CONTINUATION SHEET** 

ITEM NUMBER

PAGE 2

9

Jensen, Linda. "Peter Johnsen II." c. 1964 (unpublished).

Jensen, Venice Johansen. Interview with Nancy Taniguchi, March 26, 1979, Castle Dale, Utah. A.O.G. collection #26.

Johansen, Udella Peterson and Owen and Jane McClenahan. Interview with Nancy Taniguchi, March 20, 1979, Castle Dale, Utah. (Unrecorded.)

Jones, J. Albert. A Story of the Settling of Huntington, Utah. Price, Utah: Office Equipment Company, 1975.

Lever, W. H. <u>History of Sanpete and Emery Counties, Utah</u>. Ogden, Utah: W. H. Lever, 1898.

McClenahan, Owen. 'Memories of Peter Johansen.' 1979 (unpublished).

# PETER JOHANSEN HOUSE CASTLE DALE, EMERY COUNTY, UTAH

	LOG STRUCTU	VRE
GRANAR	Y	
	HOUSE [	

SCALE APPROXIMATE